
WOODBURY COUNTY  
ZONING COMMISSION 

Monday, May 22, 2023 at 6:00 PM 
The Zoning Commission will hold a public meeting on Monday, May 22, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the Board of 
Supervisors’ meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux 
City, IA.  Please use the 7th St. entrance.  Public access to the conversation of the meeting will also be made 
available during the meeting by telephone. Persons wanting to participate in the public meeting and public 
hearings on the agenda may attend in person or call: (712) 454-1133 and enter the Conference ID: 516 721 
135# during the meeting to listen or comment.  It is recommended to attend in person as there is the possibility 
for technical difficulties with phone and computer systems. 

AGENDA

1 CALL TO ORDER

2 ROLL CALL

3 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

4 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: April 24, 2023

5 ITEM(S) OF BUSINESS

» PUBLIC HEARING: HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, SECOND FILING, MINOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSAL ON 
PARCEL #884405200009 
John Weaver and Brian Weaver have filed for a two (2) lot minor subdivision to be known as Homestead 1867 Addition, Second Filing on the 
property identified as Parcel #884405200009.  This property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located 
in the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).  Extraterritorial review is not required as the property exceeds two (2) miles from an incorporated 
jurisdiction.  Parcel(s): 884405200009; Township/Range: T88N R44W (Wolf Creek Township); Section: 5; Quarter: NW ¼ of the NE ¼  

» PUBLIC HEARING: SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS AMENDMENTS PROPOSAL TO WOODBURY COUNTY 
ZONING ORDINANCE.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS:
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
PORTIONS OF: THE TABLE OF CONTENTS; SECTION 3.03.4 ENTITLED: LAND USE SUMMARY TABLE OF 
ALLOWED USES IN EACH ZONING DISTRICT; PORTIONS OF: SECTION 6.02 ENTITLED DEFINITIONS; AND 
THE RENUMBERING OF DEFINITIONS AND PAGE NUMBERS.  THE PROPOSAL IS TO ADD SOLAR ENERGY 
SYSTEMS (PRIVATE USE) AS ACCESSORY USES IN EACH ZONING DISTRICT AND TO ADD SOLAR 
ENERGY SYSTEMS (UTILITY SCALE) AS A CONDITIONAL USE IN THE AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION 
ZONING DISTRICT AND THE GENERAL INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICT. 

» REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION: TEMPORARY BORROW PIT ON PARCEL 
#884702100002 
JB Holland Construction, Inc. (Applicant) and property owner Donald Hennings of the Hennings Joint Trust have filed for a Conditional Use 
Permit application to establish a temporary borrow site to remove earthen materials to be used in Phase 1 and 2 of the east bound Highway 
20 project (IDOT Project #17-97-020-010).  The proposed temporary borrow area is located on Parcel #884702100002.  The parcel is 
located on the south side of Highway 20 and is currently used as farm ground.  The proposed cut area is 8-10 acres.  The work area is 10 
acres and the total excavation for export is 100,000-150,000 yrds3.  The parcel is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District 
and not in the floodplain.  Parcel(s): 884702100002; Township: T88N R47W (Woodbury Township); Section: 2; Quarter: Government Lot 3 

1



» REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION: OPERATION OF DATA PROCESSING BUSINESS 
TO PLACE A DEMAND RESPONSE LOAD RESOURCE NEXT TO THE SUBSTATION IN CONJUNCTION WITH 
LOCAL ELECTRIC UTILITY TO SUPPORT GRID RESILIENCY ON PARCEL #864723300010 
WIFI LLC (Applicant) and property owners Brenden Patricia A. Revocable Trust have filed for a Conditional Use Permit application “to place 
a demand response load resource next to the substation in conjunction with local electric utility to support grid resiliency” for the proposed 
use to operate a data processing business.  The proposed site is on Parcel #864723300010.  The parcel is located in the Agricultural 
Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located in the floodplain. Parcel(s): 864723300010; Township: T86N R47W (Lakeport 
Township); Section: 23; Quarter: NW ¼ of the SW 1/4 

» INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: WOODBURY COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2040 PRESENTATION BY 
SIMPCO 

» INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: MEETING TIME AND LOCATION FOR THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING 
COMMISSION AS REFERENCED IN THE RULES OF PROCEDURE 

6 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

7 COMMISSIONER COMMENT OR INQUIRY

8 STAFF UPDATE

9 ADJOURN

2



1 

Minutes – Woodbury County Zoning Commission Meeting – April 24, 2023 

The Zoning Commission (ZC) meeting convened on the 24th of April at 6:00 PM in the first-floor boardroom in the 
Woodbury County Courthouse.  The meeting was also made available via teleconference.   

ZC Members Present: Chris Zant, Corey Meister, Jeff O’Tool, Tom Bride 
County Staff Present:   Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton 
Public Present: Doyle Turner, Leo Jochum, John Daniels, Sid Mosher, Matt 

Mosher, Adam Larson, Bill Holland, Dakin Schultz, Jason Klemme, 
Aaron Vargas (via teleconference) 

Call to Order 
Chair Chris Zant formally called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM. 

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 

Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes – March 27, 2023  
O’Tool motioned. Second: Meister.  Motion carried: 4-0. 

Public Hearing: Niemeyer Addition, Minor Subdivision Proposal on Parcel #894607100006 
Priestley read the preliminary report and staff recommendation into the record. Marilyn Niemeyer, as Trustee of 
Edwin O. Niemeyer Revocable Trust has filed a one (1) lot minor subdivision on parcel #894607100006.  This 
subdivision application is being considered concurrently with a Condition Use Permit application to use the 
proposed 4.500 acres for Mosher Landscaping which provides landscaping and other services.  This proposal has 
been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on April 8, 2023.  Neighbors within 1000 FT have 
been duly notified via an April 14, 2023 letter about the April 24, 2023 Zoning Commission Public Hearing.  
Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities and organization have been notified and have 
been requested to comment.  The Woodbury County Engineer found the proposal in compliance with Iowa Code 
closure requirements and found the new lot has adequate access.  The Engineer did reference the consistency with 
the legal description and stated the remaining land will need to receive a driveway permit unless an easement 
agreement is included.  After clarification, both parities have made arrangements via purchase agreement.  The 
purchase agreement states, “after closing, buyer agrees to grant access easement to Seller, and any ancillary 
thereto, so that Seller can access its adjoining real estate”.  Extraterritorial review, as required by Iowa Code 354.9, 
was completed by the City of Sioux City on March 27, 2023, with the passage of City Council Resolution No. 2023-
0311.  This property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located in the Special 
Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA).  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and 
Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  Priestley noted extraterritorial 
review was completed, the City of Sioux City is not currently planning on annexing but may in the future when city 
water is available in that area.  Motion to close public hearing:  O’Tool.  Second: Meister.  Motion approved 4-0.  
Motion to recommend the approval of the Niemeyer Addition to the Board of Supervisors: O’Tool.  Second: Meister.  
Motion carried 4-0. 

Review of Conditional Use Permit Application:  Landscaping Services, Nursery Business, and Other Related 
Uses, Etc., on Parcel #894607100006 
Priestley read into record the summary of the Conditional Use Permit Proposal.  Marilyn Niemeyer, as Trustee of 
the Edwin O. Niemeyer Revocable Trust (Owner) and Sid Mosher (Applicant) has filed for a conditional use permit 
application to use the property for landscaping and nursery on a portion of the property identified as Parcel 
#894607100006 and referenced above.  Although horticultural production (including nurseries & greenhouses) are 
principally allowed uses in the AP Zoning District, a conditional use permit is required for similar landscaping uses 
such as tree services, sand and gravel storage, and feed and seed sales, fertilizer storage/distribution/application, 
and other related uses to a landscaping business.  This conditional use permit application is being considered 
concurrently with a one-lot minor subdivision application to establish a 4.5-acre lot.  This proposal has been 
property noticed in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on April 15, 2023.  The neighbors within 1000 FT have 
been duly notified via April 14, 2023 letter about the May 1, 2023 Board of Adjustment Public Hearing.  Appropriate 
stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been 
requested to comment.  This property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not 
located in the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).  Based on the information received and the requirements set 
forth in the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  Staff recommends 

3



2

approval.  Motion by Meister to recommend approval of the conditional use request to allow for this property to be 
used as a landscaping and nursery business with associated uses including tree services, sand and gravel storage, 
feed and seed sales, fertilizer storage/distribution/application, and other uses related to a landscaping business.  
Second: O’Tool.  Motion carried 4-0. 

Review of Conditional Use Permit Application:  Vendor Sales of Alcohol During RAGBRAI on Parcel 
#894407100006, 2590 110th St., Moville, IA  51039 
Priestley read the proposed Conditional Use Permit proposal into the record.  Backpocket Brewing (Applicant) and 
property owners Chad and Tara Schmitt have filed for a Conditional Use Permit application to sell alcohol during 
RAGBGRAI’s visit through Woodbury County on July 23, 2023.  The proposed sales site is on Parcel 
#894407100006.  The parcel is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located in the 
floodplain.  The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors approved Ordinance #69, effective November 16, 2022, 
authorizing this request as a conditional use in the AP District.  Based on the information received and the 
requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for 
approval.  Staff recommends approval.  Aaron Vargas spoke on behalf of Backpocket Brewing.  Motion by O’Tool to 
recommend approval and forward to Board of Adjustment the conditional use permit application to allow sales of 
alcohol only during the Special Event of RAGBRAI on July 23, 2023 with the condition that the property 
owner/applicant shall obtain all necessary federal, state, and local permits including, but not limited to liquor licensing; 
and the permit shall terminate at 11:59 PM CT on July 23, 2023.  Second: Bride.  Motion carried 4-0. 

Review of Conditional Use Permit Application:  Temporary Borrow Pits on Two Proposed Borrow Areas:  
Borrow Area #1: Parcels(s) 884704200001 & 884704200003; Borrow Area #2: Parcel(s): 884702100006 
JB Holland Construction, Inc. (Applicant) and property owners Eric Hennings and Donald Hennings of the Hennings 
Joint Trust have filed for a Conditional Use Permit application to establish temporary borrow sites to remove earthen 
materials to be used in Phase 1 and 2 of the east bound Highway 20 project (IDOT Project #17-97-020-010).  The 
proposed temporary borrow areas are located on Parcel #884704200001, Parcel #884704200003 and Parcel 
#884702100006.  The parcels are located on the south side of Highway 20.  Each parcel is currently used as farm 
ground.  The proposed cut area on Parcel #884704200001 and Parcel #884704200003 is 8-10 acres.  The work area 
is 10 acres and the total excavation for export is 100,000-150,000 yrds3.  The proposed cut area on Parcel 
#884702100006 is 8-10 acres.  The work area is 10 acres, and the total excavation for export is 100,000-150,000 
yrds3.  The parcels are located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and a portion of Parcel 
#884702100006 is located in the floodplain.  However, this area will not be a part of the borrow site.  The applicants 
have provided the necessary documentation for storm water management, soil erosion, dust control, haul routes, 
traffic entrances, hours of operation, and duration of operations.  Appropriate stakeholders including government 
agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been requested to comment.  Based on the 
information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, staff recommends 
approval of Temporary Borrow Area #2 with the condition that an archeological study be completed for the area and 
approval of Temporary Borrow Area #1 with the condition that an archeological study also be completed for the area 
and that approval is contingent on a written agreement between Magellan Midstream Partners L.P. and the property 
owners and applicants that the active pipeline be removed at the location before any borrow activity can 
proceed.  Without a verified written agreement, it is recommended by staff to deny the application for Temporary 
Borrow Area #1. Pipeline agreement has not been made as of April 24, 2023.  Bill Holland stated the area is currently 
farmland, after completion of the project, area will be graded and returned to farmland.  Motion by O’Tool to 
recommend approval of Temporary Borrow Area #2 with the condition that the final archaeological study be 
completed for the area and with the condition that approval is contingent on a written agreement between Magellan 
Midstream Partners L.P., the property owners, and applicants that the pipeline be removed at the location before any 
borrow activity can proceed.  Without a verified written agreement, it is recommended to deny the application for 
Temporary Borrow Area #1.  Second: Meister.  Motion carried 4-0. 

Information/Discussion:  Woodbury County Solar Energy Requirements Review for Possible Changes to 
Zoning Ordinance 
Priestley informed the Commission that on April 4, 2023, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors directed 
zoning to evaluate solar power in the unincorporated areas of the county.  Solar energy generation can be 
classified into two categories including personal or private and utility scale systems.  The permitting or allowed use 
of solar panels in Woodbury County is three-fold.  First, utility solar scale systems are only allowed for 
consideration as a conditional use in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District.  They are prohibited in all of the 
other zoning classifications.  Second, personal or private systems are considered in each zoning district via the 
conditional use permit process.  Lastly, it is possible that the Agricultural Exemption in Iowa Code 335.2 could be 

4



3

invoked for farms to utilize solar energy as a means of supporting their operation by being primarily adapted 
agricultural purposes.  As noted, the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance prohibits commercial large-scale 
electrical energy generation (not including wind) in each zoning district except for General Industrial (GI).  Within 
the GI Zoning District, a conditional use permit application is required to be reviewed by the Zoning Commission 
and considered for approval by the Board of Adjustment.  Under this policy, utility scale solar panel systems are 
prohibited on farmland (and all districts except GI) unless a farming operation uses them under the parameters of 
the agricultural exemption as enumerated in Iowa Code 335.2.  If there is no agricultural exemption and the 
landowner resides on agricultural land, the ordinance prohibits electric energy generation (not including wind).  If a 
landowner desires to use several acres of land in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District, they would first 
need to achieve a rezone from the AP to the GI Zoning District.  However, since spot zoning by convention is not a 
widely accepted practice, and that much of the future land use map does not provide for industrial activities in 
agricultural areas (see Future Land Use Map below), the chances are minimal for the zoning designation to change 
in order to consider a commercial solar conditional use permit on AP zoned land.  The Commission discussed 
some potential paths to address solar including focusing on amending the private systems to be allowed as an 
accessory use via building permit.  They also discussed the possibility of making the consideration of the 
conditional use permit an option in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  Leo Jochum and Doyle 
Turner offered comments about solar including the CSR ratings.  Jochum discussed potential areas in the county 
that could facilitate solar.  Turner offered concerns about the CSR and suggested the siting of solar from a slope 
standpoint instead.  The Commission discussed having a public hearing next month to consider amendments to the 
zoning ordinance.   

Information/Discussion:  Summary of Proposed Revisions to Woodbury County Ordinance #56:   
Priestley informed the Commission that the Board of Supervisors are looking toward amending the wind energy 
ordinance, Ordinance #56.  The proposed public hearing dates are May 9, 16 and 23.  The proposal is to amend 
portions of Woodbury County Ordinance #56: an amendment to modify section 6.1.A: wind turbines set back 
requirements to increase certain setback requirements in the ordinance regulating commercial wind energy 
conversion systems in unincorporated Woodbury County.  Amendment #1: On page 10, Section 6.1.A, to repeal 
and replace the Wind Turbine Set Back Requirement for the City Limits Protected Area from 600 feet to 2 miles. 
Amendment #2: On page 10, Section 6.1.A, to repeal and replace the Wind Turbine Set Back Requirement for the 
Public Conservation Protected Area from 600 feet or 110% of total height (whichever is greater) to 2,640 feet or 
4.5x tower height (whichever is greater). 

Information/Discussion:  Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040 Update 
SIMPCO will present a draft version of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan at an Open House on Wednesday, April 26th 
from 5:00 – 6:30 in the basement meeting room of the courthouse to review the plan and receive comments on the 
future development of Woodbury County.  Everyone is encouraged to attend and offer input.   

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 

Commissioner Comment or Inquiry 
None 

Staff Update 
Iowa State University Extension and Outreach will provide a Zoning Training session on April 27, 2023 at the Hilton 
Garden Inn on April 27, 2023.  Board of Supervisors, Zoning Commission, and Board of Adjustment members are 
invited to attend.  The Federal government is getting closer to implementation of the new FEMA maps.  The 90-day 
appeal period will be up through July 24, 2023. 

Adjourn 
Motion by O’Tool.  Second: Meister.  Carried 4-0.  The meeting adjourned at 7:29 PM. 

5



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – MAY 17, 2023 
JOHN WEAVER AND BRIAN WEAVER 

HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, SECOND FILING – MINOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSAL
APPLICATION DETAILS: 

Owner(s): John Weaver and Brian Weaver
Application Type: Minor Subdivision (2 Lots) 
Subdivision Name: Homestead 1867 Addition, Second 
Filing 
Application Date: April 26, 2023
Subdivision Area: 56.67 Total Acres 
Legal Notice Date: May 12, 2023
Stakeholder (1000’) Letter Date: May 5, 2023
Zoning Commission Public Hearing May 22, 2023 
Board of Supervisors Agenda Date: TBD 

PROPERTY DETAILS: 
Parcel(s): 884405200009
Township/Range: T88N R44W (Wolf Creek 
Township) 
Section: 5 
Quarter: NW ¼ of the NE ¼  
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Floodplain District: Zone X (Not in Floodplain) 
Address: No address 

TABLE OF CONTENTS: 
Summary, Aerial, Plat Excerpt & Recommendation 
Application 
Final Plat 
Review Criteria 
Extraterritorial Review 
Legal Notification 
Adjacent Owners’ Notification 
Stakeholder Comments 
Supporting Documentation 

SUMMARY
John Weaver and Brian Weaver have filed for a two (2) lot minor subdivision to be known as Homestead 1867 Addition, Second Filing on the property identified 
as Parcel #884405200009 and referenced above.  This agricultural subdivision proposal has been property noticed in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on 
May 12, 2023.  The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a May 5, 2023 letter about the May 22, 2023 Zoning Commission Public Hearing.  
Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been requested to comment.  The Woodbury 
County Engineer found the proposal in compliance with Iowa Code closure requirements and found that the lots have adequate access.  The engineer 
recommends that the owners prepare a clearly written easement agreement to cover issues such as snow removal and maintenance of the shared access 
driveway and record the easement for the benefit of future owners.  This property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located 
in the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).  Extraterritorial review is not required as the property exceeds two (2) miles from an incorporated jurisdiction.  Based on 
the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets appropriate criteria for approval.

AERIAL MAP PLAT EXCERPT

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for 
approval.  Staff recommends approval with the condition that the owners prepare a clearly written easement agreement to cover issues such as snow removal 
and maintenance of the shared access driveway and record the easement for the benefit of future owners.   

Suggested Motion:  Motion to recommend the approval of the Homestead 1867 Addition, Second Filing to the Board of Supervisors with the condition that the 
owners prepare a clearly written easement agreement to cover issues such as snow removal and maintenance of the shared access driveway and record the 
easement for the benefit of future owners.   

6



APPLICATION

7



I, MARK NAHRA, P.E. COUNTY ENGINEER FOR WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE BOUNDARY LINES OF THE PLAT AND LOTS 
THEREIN WERE MATHEMATICALLY CHECKED AND CONFORM WITH THE 
REQUIREMENTS AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE, THAT 
ALL DIMENSIONS BOTH LINEAL AND ANGULAR NECESSARY FOR THE 
LOCATION OF LOTS, TRACTS, STREETS, ALLEYS AND EASEMENTS ARE 
SHOWN.

____________________________________
MARK NAHRA, P.E.
COUNTY ENGINEER
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

I, ALAN L. FAGAN, A DULY LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
LAWS OF THE STATE OF IOWA, HOLDING CERTIFICATE NO. 15082, DO HEREBY CERTIFY 
THAT THE SUBDIVISION PLAT OF HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, SECOND FILING, 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, IS A TRUE REPRESENTATION OF A SURVEY MADE BY ME OR 
UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION, AND THAT THE SAME IS LOCATED UPON AND COMPRISES 
THE WHOLE OF THE ATTACHED DESCRIBED PROPERTY.

I DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THERE ARE CONTAINED IN SAID DESCRIPTION THE LOTS 
AND STREETS DESCRIBED IN THE ADDITION PLATTED; THAT THE SAME ARE OF THE 
DIMENSIONS, NUMBERS, NAMES AND LOCATIONS AS SHOWN ON SAID PLAT AND THAT IRON 
STAKES WERE DRIVEN AT EACH CORNER OF EVERY LOT AND TRACT EXCEPT AS NOTED ON 
SAID PLAT.

DATED AT SIOUX CITY, IOWA _________________________, 2023.

____________________________________
ALAN L. FAGAN
IOWA NO. 15082

LICENSE RENEWAL DATE:  DECEMBER 31, 2023

95
3.

50
'

20
2.
12
'

S 
51
°3
0'
09
" 
E

N 88°53'06" W
1315.58'

343.00'

S.W. CORNER
S.W.1/4-N.E.1/4
SEC. 5-88-44
FOUND 1/2"
YELLOW CAPPED
REBAR #15082

972.58'

S.E. CORNER
S.W.1/4-N.E.1/4
SEC. 5-88-44
FOUND 1/2"
YELLOW CAPPED
REBAR #15082

BINS

N 80°55'02" W755.00'

112.03'S 25°30'33" W

85.32'S 33°31'29" W

NORTH LINE
N.W.1/4-N.E.1/4
SEC. 5-88-44

31.75 ACRES INCLUDING COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY
30.75 ACRES EXCLUDING COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY

S 
43
°3
9'
05
" 
W

39
5.
57
'

15
88
.5
0'

POINT OF
BEGINNING
EASEMENT
#3

13
34

.9
2'

N 
0°

31
'5

6"
 E

I
H

3.
08
'

POINT OF
BEGINNING
EASEMENT
#2

3

10
3.
85
'

S 
35
°5
7'
38
" 
E

G HOMESTEAD
1867 ADDITION

K

J F

E4

M

322.93'
N 88°37'01" W

LOT 2
24.92 ACRES

385.03'

38
1.
42
'

L

137.98'S 1°00'07" W
S.W. CORNER
N.W.1/4-N.E.1/4
SEC. 5-88-44
FOUND ALUMINUM
CAPPED REBAR
#15082

15.98'

N 88°37'01" W

43.12'

S 33°31'29" W

N

D

O P
C

B

6

A5

CL

N 46°35'07" W

582.33'

30' WIDE
INGRESS/EGRESS
EASEMENT

WE
ST
 L
IN
E

N.
W.
1/
4-
N.
E.
1/
4

SE
C.
 5
-8
8-
44 22
8.
59
'

N 
60
°4
1'
45
" 
W

123.9
5'

N 11°
39'17

" W

21
28
.4
5'

N 
0°
38
'4
2"
 E

17
3.
68
'

N 
49
°5
8'
04
" 
W

374.20'

98.24'

N 28°50'47" W

738.96'
S 89°08'36" E

53
9.
95
'

N.W. CORNER
N.W.1/4-N.E.1/4
SEC. 5-88-44
FOUND BRONZE
DISK #15082
IN ASPHALT
ROAD

33' COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY

LOT 1

S.1/4 CORNER
SEC. 36-89-44
FOUND IDOT
BRONZE DISK
WITH CUT
TRIANGLE
IN ASPHALT
ROADPOINT OF

BEGINNING

25.29'
S 24°20'00" W

S 
0°

35
'2

5"
 W

13
28

.7
4'

S.E. CORNER
N.W.1/4-N.E.1/4
SEC. 5-88-44
FOUND 1/2"
YELLOW CAPPED
REBAR #15082

2

S 
0°
35
'2
5"
 W

88
2.
22
'

80.00'

1

S 
42
°1
1'
15
" 
W

34
5.
56
'26
5.
56
'

POINT OF
BEGINNING
EASEMENT
#4

90.61'

S 34°52'32" W

12
57
.7
7'

S 
0°
35
'2
5"
 W

CL

S 
17
°3
5'
26
" 
W

59
0.
05
'

59.19'
S 24°20'00" W

EA
ST
 L
IN
E

N.
W.
1/
4-
N.
E.
1/
4

SE
C.
 5
-8
8-
44

30' WIDE
INGRESS/EGRESS & 
UTILITY EASEMENT

84.48'
S 24°20'00" W

NORTH LINE
N.E.1/4-N.E.1/4
SEC. 5-88-44

152.57'S 11°32'34" W

100.00'
S 0°54'46" W

S 
15
°4
3'
13
" 
W

45
7.
78
'

575.90'
S 89°05'14" E

POINT OF
BEGINNING
EASEMENT
#1

N.E. CORNER
N.W.1/4-N.E.1/4
SEC. 5-88-44
FOUND MAG NAIL
WITH WASHER
#15082 IN
ASPHALT ROAD

321.56'

CL

1314.86'
S 89°05'14" E

(160TH ST.)D-22

N.E. CORNER
SEC. 5-88-44
FOUND BRONZE
DISK #15082
IN ASPHALT 
ROAD

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

BRIAN D. WEAVER AND DEBORAH WEAVER, HUSBAND AND WIFE, AND JOHN K. WEAVER AND DIANE WEAVER, 
HUSBAND AND WIFE, THE OWNERS OF THE REAL ESTATE DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED SURVEYOR'S 
CERTIFICATE, HAVE IN THE PURSUANCE OF LAW, CAUSED SAID DESCRIBED REAL ESTATE TO BE SURVEYED, 
STAKED AND PLATTED INTO LOTS AND STREETS, AS IS PARTICULARLY SHOWN AND SET FORTH IN THE 
ATTACHED PLAT AND SAID CERTIFICATE OF ALAN L. FAGAN, A LICENSED SURVEYOR WHO SURVEYED AND 
PLATTED THE REAL ESTATE TO BE KNOWN HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, SECOND FILING, WOODBURY COUNTY, 
IOWA, AND THAT THE SAME IS PREPARED WITH THE FREE CONSENT AND ACCORDANCE WITH THE DESIRES AS 
OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS THEREOF.

EXECUTED AT _______________________, IOWA, THE ___ DAY OF ________________, 2023.

___________________________________
BRIAN D. WEAVER

___________________________________
DEBORAH WEAVER

___________________________________
JOHN K. WEAVER

___________________________________
DIANE WEAVER

STATE OF IOWA  :
                : SS
WOODBURY COUNTY:

ON THIS ______ DAY OF __________________, 2023, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED, A NOTARY PUBLIC 
IN AND FOR THE STATE OF IOWA, PERSONALLY APPEARED BRIAN D. WEAVER AND DEBORAH WEAVER, HUSBAND 
AND WIFE, AND JOHN K. WEAVER AND DIANE WEAVER, HUSBAND AND WIFE, TO ME KNOWN TO BE THE 
PERSONS NAMED IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT, AND ACKNOWLEDGED THAT THEY 
EXECUTED THE SAME AS THEIR VOLUNTARY ACT AND DEED.

_____________________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC

I, CHRIS ZELLMER ZANT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY 
ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA AND DO FURTHER CERTIFY THAT SAID COMMISSION HAS 
HERETOFORE TAKEN UNDER ADVISEMENT THE PLAT OF HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, SECOND FILING, 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, AND THAT SAID WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, 
IOWA DID ON THE ______DAY OF ________________, 2023 APPROVE THE SAME AND DOES FURTHER 
HEREBY RECOMMEND TO THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, THE 
ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT.

DATED THIS   ________ DAY OF ___________________, 2023.

____________________________________________________
CHRIS ZELLMER ZANT
CHAIRMAN
WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, SECOND FILING, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA IS SUBJECT TO AND 
TOGETHER WITH THE FOLLOWING EASEMENTS:
EASEMENT #1:
A 30 FOOT WIDE INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT IN THE N.E.1/4 OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 
88 NORTH, RANGE 44 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, THE 
CENTERLINE BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AT THE N.W. CORNER OF THE N.E.1/4 OF 
SAID N.E.1/4; THENCE S.89°05'14"E. ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID N.E.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4 
FOR 321.56 FEET TO THE CENTERLINE OF SAID EASEMENT AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 
S.0°54'46"W. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 100.00 FEET; THENCE S.11°32'34"W. ALONG SAID 
CENTERLINE FOR 152.57 FEET; THENCE S.15°43'13"W. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 457.78 FEET; 
THENCE S.17°35'26"W. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 590.05 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE 
N.W.1/4 OF SAID N.E.1/4; THENCE S.24°20'00"W. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 84.48 FEET; 
THENCE S.34°52'32"W. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 90.61 FEET; THENCE S.42°11'15"W. ALONG 
SAID CENTERLINE FOR 345.56 FEET; THENCE S.43°39'05"W. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 395.57 
FEET; THENCE 33°31'29"W. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 85.32 FEET; THENCE S.25°30'33"W. ALONG 
SAID CENTERLINE FOR 112.03 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE S.W.1/4 OF SAID N.E.1/4; THENCE 
S.21°30'32"W. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 87.20 FEET; THENCE S.6°18'11"W. ALONG SAID 
CENTERLINE FOR 54.02 FEET; THENCE S.0°14'06"E. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 124.36 FEET; 
THENCE S.25°00'18"W. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 113.98 FEET; THENCE S.3°35'34"W. ALONG 
SAID CENTERLINE FOR 157.01 FEET; THENCE S.22°50'35"W. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 76.04 
FEET; THENCE S.35°57'38"E. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 103.85 FEET; THENCE S.51°30'09"E. 
ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 202.12 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF LOT 4, HOMESTEAD 1867 
ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA AND THE END OF SAID EASEMENT DESCRIPTION.  THE SIDELINES 
OF SAID EASEMENT BEING SHORTENED OR ELONGATED TO MEET THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 4.  

EASEMENT #2:
A 30 FOOT WIDE INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT, THE CENTERLINE BEING DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF LOT 3, HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE N.64°58'26"W. ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 3 FOR 
3.08 FEET TO THE CENTERLINE OF SAID EASEMENT AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 
N.34°32'56"E. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 20.52 FEET; THENCE S.89°37'21"E. ALONG SAID 
CENTERLINE FOR 121.77 FEET; THENCE S.75°32'38"E. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 65.53 FEET TO 
THE CENTERLINE OF EASEMENT #1 DESCRIBED IN SAID ADDITION AND THE END OF SAID EASEMENT 
DESCRIPTION.  THE SIDELINES OF SAID EASEMENT BEING SHORTENED OR ELONGATED TO MEET THE 
NORTHERLY AND EASTERLY LINES OF SAID LOT 3.

EASEMENT #3:
A 30 FOOT WIDE INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT, THE CENTERLINE BEING DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 5, HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE S.48°56'28"E. ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 5 FOR 
15.98 FEET TO THE CENTERLINE OF SAID EASEMENT AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 
N.51°14'00"E. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 82.28 FEET; THENCE N.84°27'24"E. ALONG SAID 
CENTERLINE FOR 45.17 FEET; THENCE S.66°28'04"E. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 36.21 FEET; 
THENCE S.62°36'00"E. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 29.92 FEET; THENCE S.86°08'02"E. ALONG 
SAID CENTERLINE FOR 37.67 FEET TO THE CENTERLINE OF EASEMENT #1 DESCRIBED IN SAID 
ADDITION AND THE END OF SAID EASEMENT DESCRIPTION.  THE SIDELINES OF SAID EASEMENT BEING 
SHORTENED OR ELONGATED TO MEET THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 5.

EASEMENT #4:
A 30 FOOT WIDE INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT, THE CENTERLINE BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF LOT 2, HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, SECOND FILING, 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE S.24°20'00"W. ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 2 FOR 
25.29 FEET; THENCE S.34°52'32"W. ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE FOR 90.61 FEET; THENCE 
S.42°11'15"W. ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE FOR 265.56 FEET TO THE CENTERLINE OF SAID EASEMENT 
AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE N.46°35'07"W. ALONG SAID CENTERLINE FOR 582.33 FEET TO 
THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 2 AND THE END OF SAID EASEMENT DESCRIPTION.  THE SIDELINES 
OF SAID EASEMENT BEING SHORTENED OR ELONGATED TO MEET THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 2.

ALL BEING SUBJECT TO AND TOGETHER WITH ANY AND ALL OTHER EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS AND 
COVENANTS.

56.67 ACRES INCLUDING COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY
55.67 ACRES EXCLUDING COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY

TOTAL AREA

AL FAGAN
LAND SURVEYING, P.C.

P.O. BOX 858
MERRILL, IA 51038

712 539-1471

INDIVIDUAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT

DEDICATION

RESOLUTION AND CERTIFICATE OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY
ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

April 6, 2023

Al Fagan Land Surveying, PC
314 Main Street
Merrill, IA 51038

Re: John Weaver and Brian Weaver

We have examined an abstract of title to the following described real estate, to-wit:

Part of the Northeast Quarter (NE¼) of Section Five (5); Township Eighty-eight (88) North, Range 
Forty-four (44), West of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa described as follows:
Beginning at the NW corner of  the NW¼ of said NE¼, thence S 89°08'36" E, along the North line of 
said NW¼ of the NE¼ for 738.96 feet to the S¼ corner of Section 36, Township 89 North, Range 44 West 
of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa; thence S 89°05'14" E, along said North line for 575.90 feet 
to the NE corner of said NW¼ of  the NE¼, thence S 0°35'25" W, along the East line of said NW¼ of  
the NE¼ for 1,257.77 feet to the Northerly most corner of  Lot 1, Homestead 1867 Addition, Woodbury 
County, Iowa; thence S 24°20'00" W, along the Northwesterly line of said Lot 1 for 84.48 feet; thence 
S 34°52'32" W, along said Northwesterly line for 90.61 feet; thence S 42°11'15" W, along said 
Northwesterly line for 345.56 feet; thence S 43°39'05" W, along said Northwesterly line for 395.57 
feet; thence S 33°31'29" W, along said Northwesterly line for 43.12 feet to the Northeasterly comer 
of  Lot 5 in said Homestead 1867 Addition; thence N 88°37'01" W, along the North line of said Lot 5 
for 322.93 feet to the NW comer of said Lot 5; thence S 1°00'07" W, along the West line of said Lot 5 
for 137.98 feet to the North line of  Lot 4 of said Homestead 1867 Addition; thence N 88°37'01" W, 
along said North line for 385.03 feet to the NW corner of said Lot 4 and the SW corner of said NW¼ of 
the N 1/4 ; thence N 0°38'42" E, along the West line of said NW¼ of the NE¼ for 2,128.45 feet to the 
point of beginning. Containing 56.67 acres including County Right of Way and 55.67 acres excluding 
said Right of Way.

Note: The East line of saidNW¼ of theNE¼ is assumed to bear S 0°35'25" W.

This abstract begins appropriately on the eighth day of February, 1877, and concludes with Entry 24 
in Volume I last certified the seventeenth day of May, 2023, at 5:00 o'clock p.m. by Engleson 
Abstract Co., Inc. 

As of the date of the last certification, we find that the abstract shows marketable title, in fee 
simple and free from material objections, to be vested in John Weaver and Brian Weaver, as tenants in 
common.

1.	There are no material objections to title;  however, title is subject to all easements, 
restrictions and covenants of record.

EXAMINER'S NOTES:

	A.   The abstract is being retained by our office pending further instructions.

We also caution you that title defects can exist which cannot be disclosed by an abstract 
examination.  These include any facts which would be disclosed by a survey or other physical 
examination of the premises; certain mechanic's liens; the rights of parties in possession; 
restrictions on building, occupancy, or usage contained in applicable zoning regulations or 
ordinances; and limitations or access rights to and from public highways, streets, or ways.

You are also advised that the abstract does not, and cannot, furnish direct information concerning 
environmental hazards which may exist on real estate.   Since present laws make the owners of land 
financially responsible for cleaning up toxic material on the premises despite the fact that the 
present owner had nothing to do with placing the objectionable waste upon the land, you should 
satisfy yourself that no toxic material is located on the property.

						Very truly yours,

						PHIPPS LAW OFFICE, PLC
						Moville, Iowa

						By:
							Patrick J. Phipps 
							Ab # 9082

TITLE OPINIONALAN L.
FAGAN

AWOI

# 15082

R
O

E
Y

V

RUS
DNALLA

O N
I

S
S

E
F

O
R

P

160TH ST.
HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION,

SECOND FILING

EASEMENT #4
TO BE USED BY
THE OWNER OF 
LOT 1, HOMESTEAD
1867 ADDITION,
SECOND FILING

AUDITOR AND RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE OF RECORDING

AUDITOR'S APPROVAL OF SUBDIVISION NAME OR TITLE

STATE OF IOWA     :
                    :  SS
COUNTY OF WOODBURY:

DOCKET NO: ________________________________

FILED FOR RECORD, THIS _____DAY OF___________________, 202___ 
AT ______ 

O'CLOCK ___.M. RECORDED IN PLAT ENVELOPE 
_________________________, INDEXED AND 

DELIVERED TO THE COUNTY AUDITOR OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA.

DATED _____________________________                          

____________________________________
PATRICK F. GILL
AUDITOR AND RECORDER
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
BY:  DIANE SWOBODA PETERSON, DEPUTY

THE COUNTY AUDITOR HEREBY ACCEPTS AND APPROVES THE NAME OF 
HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, SECOND FILING, WOODBURY COUNTY, 
IOWA, FOR USE IN WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA AS REQUIRED BY IOWA 
CODE SECTION 354.6(2).

DATED __________________________, 2023.

______________________________
PATRICK F. GILL
WOODBURY COUNTY AUDITOR
BY:  DIANE SWOBODA PETERSON, DEPUTY

BOARD OF SUPERVISOR'S RESOLUTION
RESOLUTION NO. _______________________
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND APPROVING HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, SECOND FILING, WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA.

WHEREAS, THE OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS DID ON THE ____ DAY OF _________________,
2023, FILE WITH THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION A CERTAIN PLAT DESIGNATED AS 
HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, SECOND FILING, WOODBURY COUNTY,  IOWA; AND

WHEREAS, IT APPEARS THAT SAID PLAT CONFORMS WITH ALL OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE CODE OF 
THE STATE OF IOWA AND ORDINANCES OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, WITH REFERENCE TO THE FILING 
OF SAME; AND 

WHEREAS, THE ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA HAS RECOMMENDED THE ACCEPTANCE 
AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT; AND

WHEREAS, THE COUNTY ENGINEER OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA HAS RECOMMENDED THE ACCEPTANCE 
AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT.

NOW THEREFORE, BE, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA, THAT THE PLAT OF HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, 
SECOND FILING, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BE, AND THE SAME IS HEREBY ACCEPTED AND APPROVED, 
AND THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY 
COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA, ARE HEREBY DIRECTED TO FURNISH TO THE OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS A 
CERTIFIED COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF ____________________, 2023.

__________________________________
MATTHEW UNG
CHAIRMAN
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

ATTEST: __________________________
        PATRICK F. GILL
        SECRETARY

0 150 300

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

PART OF THE N.E.1/4 OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 88 NORTH, RANGE 44 WEST OF THE 
5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE N.W. CORNER OF THE N.W.1/4 OF SAID N.E.1/4; THENCE 
S.89°08'36"E. ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4 FOR 738.96 
FEET TO THE S.1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 44 WEST OF 
THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE S.89°05'14"E. 
ALONG SAID NORTH LINE FOR 575.90 FEET TO THE N.E. CORNER OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF 
THE N.E.1/4; THENCE S.0°35'25"W. ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE 
N.E.1/4 FOR 1257.77 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY MOST CORNER OF LOT 1, HOMESTEAD 
1867 ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE S.24°20'00"W. ALONG THE 
NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 1 FOR 84.48 FEET; THENCE S.34°52'32"W. ALONG 
SAID NORTHWESTERLY LINE FOR 90.61 FEET; THENCE S.42°11'15"W. ALONG SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY LINE FOR 345.56 FEET; THENCE S.43°39'05"W. ALONG SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY LINE FOR 395.57 FEET; THENCE S.33°31'29"W. ALONG SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY LINE FOR 43.12 FEET TO THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF LOT 5 IN 
SAID HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION; THENCE N.88°37'01"W. ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF 
SAID LOT 5 FOR 322.93 FEET TO THE N.W. CORNER OF SAID LOT 5; THENCE 
S.1°00'07"W. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 5 FOR 137.98 FEET TO THE NORTH 
LINE OF LOT 4 IS SAID HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION; THENCE N.88°37'01"W. ALONG 
SAID NORTH LINE FOR 385.03 FEET TO THE N.W. CORNER OF SAID LOT 4 AND THE 
S.W. CORNER OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4; THENCE N.0°38'42"E. ALONG THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4 FOR 2128.45 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 56.67 ACRES INCLUDING COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY AND 55.67 
ACRES EXCLUDING SAID RIGHT OF WAY.  SUBJECT TO AND TOGETHER WITH ANY AND ALL 
EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS.

NOTE:
THE EAST LINE OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4 IS ASSUMED TO BEAR S.0°35'25"W.

SURVEYOR'S DESCRIPTION

FRONT YARD - 100'

SIDE YARD - 20'
ACCESSORY STRUCTURE - 10'

REAR YARD - 50'
ACCESSORY STRUCTURE - 10'

ALAN L. FAGAN

BRIAN WEAVER
JOHN WEAVER

SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

SURVEYOR

OWNERS/SUBDIVIDERS

CENTERLINE EASEMENT DIMENSIONS

L-M: N.51°14'00"E. - 82.28'
M-N: N.84°27'24"E. - 45.17'
N-O: S.66°28'04"E. - 36.21'
O-P: S.62°36'00"E. - 29.92'
P-C: S.86°08'02"E. - 37.67'

H-I: N.34°32'56"E. - 20.52'
I-J: S.89°37'21"E. - 121.77'
J-K: S.75°32'38"E. - 65.53'

A-B: S.21°30'32"W. - 87.20'
B-C: S.6°18'11"W. - 54.02'
C-D: S.0°14'06"E. - 124.36'
D-E: S.25°00'18"W. - 113.98'
E-F: S.3°35'34"W. - 157.01'
F-G: S.22°50'35"W. - 76.04'

NOTES
SUBJECT TO AND TOGETHER WITH 
EASEMENTS #1, #2 & #3 AS 
SHOWN ON THE FINAL PLAT OF 
HOMESTEAD 1867 ADDITION, 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, SEE 
PLAT ENVELOPE 878B AND 
RECORDED ON INSTRUMENT #: 
2021-17470 IN THE WOODBURY 
COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE.

THERE MAY BE OTHER EASEMENTS, 
RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS 
NOT SHOWN THAT AFFECT THIS 
PROPERTY.

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

= 1/2" YELLOW CAPPED
  REBAR #15082 FOUND

= 7" SPIKE FOUND

= MAG NAIL FOUND
  IN ASPHALT ROAD

= 1/2" YELLOW CAPPED
  REBAR #15082 SET

= 7" SPIKE SET

SCALE 1"=300'

5-88-44 HOMESTEAD 2ND
2023 (22)

MONUMENTS

JE
WE
LL
 A
VE
.

JA
SP
ER
 A
VE
.

TREASURER'S  CERTIFICATE OF 
TAXES AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY ASSESSOR

COUNTY ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATE

I, TINA BERTRAND, TREASURER OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE LAND DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED AND 
FOREGOING SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE IS FREE FROM CERTIFIED 
TAXES AND CERTIFIED SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.

DATED__________________________________

_________________________________________
TINA BERTRAND
TREASURER,
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

I, JULIE CONOLLY, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ON THE _____ DAY OF 
___________________, 202__, A COPY OF THIS PLAT WAS FILED 
IN THE WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR'S OFFICE.

DATED ________________________________

________________________________________
JULIE CONOLLY
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR

VICINITY SKETCH
NO SCALE

5-88-44

170TH ST.

2

1
HOMESTEAD
1867 ADD.

SECOND FILING

HOMESTEAD
1867 ADD.

HWY. #20

MOVILLE

3.5 MILES
.5 MILES

FINAL PLAT
A MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT

OF

8



9



CED STAFF - REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE)
The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. Per 
these requirements, CED staff:

shall review a subdivision application for completeness and for approval of a final plat by ensuring it is submitted in accordance 
with the standards for a subdivision plat per Iowa Code.
Staff reviewed the subdivision application, deemed it complete, and verified the final plat’s conformance to the County’s Zoning Ordinance, 
Subdivision Ordinance, and the Code of Iowa, all as required by law.
shall accept payment of applicable fees, and distribute copies of the final plat to the Planning & Zoning Commission, the 
appropriate county departments and public utilities; and
Staff received the application fee and the account is paid-in-full.  Staff also distributed copies of the application, final plat, and other materials 
to all relevant stakeholders as required.
shall coordinate with the County Engineer who shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the engineering design 
standards of these regulations and to verify accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data; and
Staff have received written confirmation that the County Engineer has reviewed and determined that the final plat conforms to the engineering 
and design standards of these regulations, and he has verified the accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data.
shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the design standards of these regulations and with the required form of 
the plat and related documents; and
Staff verified that the final plat conforms to the design standards of these regulations, as well as the required form of the final plat.
shall assure conformance with the goals and objectives of the County’s General Plan, the CED staff may make recommendations 
for conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort, 
and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties.
Staff attest to the final plat conforming to the goals and objectives of the county plan.  Staff recommends approval of the final plat.

ZONING COMMISSION - REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE)
The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. Per 
these requirements, the Planning and Zoning Commission:

shall conduct a public hearing on a final plat for a minor subdivision. Notice of the date, time and location of the hearing will be 
mailed to the owners of all property within 1,000 feet for the subject property not less than four nor more than twenty days prior to 
the date of the hearing; and
Staff have ensured that the legal requirements have been met for publicly noticing this public hearing, all as required by law. Staff have also 
ensured the notice requirement for adjacent landowners within 1000 FT have also been met. 
shall review the final plat and the staff reports and other information presented to determine whether the plat conforms to the 
ordinances, general plan and other policies of the county; and
Staff have compiled, reviewed, and analyzed all relevant materials to determine whether the plat conforms to the ordinances, general plan, and 
other policies of the County, or not. Staff provided this information in a “Staff Report” format and made them available to the Commission well 
in advance of the required public hearing. The Commission also held a public hearing to review, analyze, and discuss the final plat and other 
relevant information.
may recommend specific conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties; and
Staff recommends approval with the condition that the owners prepare a clearly written easement agreement to cover issues such as snow 
removal and maintenance of the shared access driveway and record the easement for the benefit of future owners.  
shall forward a report of its finding and a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors. The recommendation shall be in the form of 
a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat materials. A copy of the report and the resolution shall also be forwarded to the 
property owner, the subdivider and the land surveyor for the subdivision.
During its required public hearing on the final plat, the Board of Supervisors will receive the final staff report and the Commission's 
recommendation on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Supervisors may table the matter with the 
consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat. Staff will coordinate with the 
subdivider and land surveyor to ensure all copies and recordings are submitted and received, all as required by law. 

EXTRATERRITORIAL REVIEW
This property is not within two (2) miles of an incorporated area and 
does not require extraterritorial review under Iowa Code, Section 354.9.  

10



LEGAL NOTIFICATION
Published in the Sioux City Journal’s Attorneys & Legals section on Friday, May 12, 2023 for the Zoning Commission’s May 22, 2023 public hearing. 

11



PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION – 1000 FEET
The 3 property owners within 1,000 FT; and listed within the certified abstractor’s affidavit; were notified by a 
May 5, 2023 letter of the public hearing before the Woodbury County Zoning Commission on May 22, 2023. 

As of May 17, 2023, the Community and Economic Development office has received the following 
comments.  The names of the property owners are listed below. 

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting. 

Name Address City State Zip COMMENTS: 

John Weaver and Brian Weaver 3155 160th St. Moville IA 51039-8104 
No comments 

Rochelle Wilson 1610 Jasper Ave. Moville IA 51039-8188 
No comments. 

Manon Haddock 6132 Bradford Lane Johnston IA 50131 
No comments. 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No issues from Magellan on this one, Daniel. – Bryan Ferguson, 5/1/23.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): Thank you, Dan  I have reviewed the attached proposed minor subdivision for MEC 

electric.  We have no conflicts.  The developer should be made aware that any 
requested relocation or extension of our distribution system is subject to customer 
contribution. – Casey Meinen, 5/1/23.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): I see no conflicts for MEC “Gas”. The developer should be aware that the cost to serve 
natural gas to this development would be at the cost of the customer. – Tyler Ahlquist, 
5/1/23.

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request, NIPCO has no facilities at or adjacent to this 

location. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 5/8/23.
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: SEE REVIEW MEMO BELOW
WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: I have no comments.  Thank you – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 5/1/23.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
(REC):

No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this subdivision proposal. – Neil Stockfleth, 
5/1/23.

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: 

12



REVIEW MEMO – MARK J. NAHRA, PE – WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER, SECONDARY ROADS DEPARTMENT

13



PARCEL REPORT

14



ZONING MAP

15



ELEVATION

16



SOIL MAP

17



 

WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov  

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 

Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT PROPOSAL 

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE TO AMEND PORTIONS OF: THE 
TABLE OF CONTENTS; SECTION 3.03.4 ENTITLED: LAND USE SUMMARY TABLE OF ALLOWED USES 
IN EACH ZONING DISTRICT; PORTIONS OF: SECTION 6.02 ENTITLED DEFINITIONS; AND THE 
RENUMBERING OF DEFINITIONS AND PAGE NUMBERS.  THE PROPOSAL IS TO ADD SOLAR 
ENERGY SYSTEMS (PRIVATE USE) AS ACCESSORY USES IN EACH ZONING DISTRICT AND TO ADD 
SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS (UTILITY SCALE) AS A CONDITIONAL USE IN THE AGRICULTURAL 
PRESERVATION ZONING DISTRICT AND THE GENERAL INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICT. 

 

CURRENT 
LAND USE SUMMARY TABLE OF ALLOWED USES (Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning O) - EXCERPT 

 

 

ok  Principal allowed use 

C   Conditional use 

A   Accessory use 

TU Temporary use 

                --   Prohibited use 

AP AE NR SR GC HC LI GI 

 Utilities          

    Electrical energy generation (not incl. wind) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- C 

    Electrical energy wind generation (Commercial) C -- -- -- -- -- -- C 

    Sewage treatment plants C C C C C C C C 

    Utility substations ok ok -- -- ok -- -- ok 

  Electric wind generator (Private use) C C C C C C C C 

  Sewage treatment for subdivision C C C C C C C C 

  Sewage lagoon C C C C C C C C 

  Water storage tanks C C C C C C C C 

 
 

 

PROPOSED 
LAND USE SUMMARY TABLE OF ALLOWED USES (Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance) - EXCERPT 

 

 

ok  Principal allowed use 

C   Conditional use 

A   Accessory use 

TU Temporary use 

                --   Prohibited use 

AP AE NR SR GC HC LI GI 

 Utilities          

    Electrical energy generation (not incl. wind) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- C 

    Electrical energy wind generation (Commercial) C -- -- -- -- -- -- C 

    Sewage treatment plants C C C C C C C C 

    Utility substations ok ok -- -- ok -- -- ok 

  Electric wind generator (Private use) C C C C C C C C 

  Sewage treatment for subdivision C C C C C C C C 

  Sewage lagoon C C C C C C C C 

  Solar Energy Systems (Private Use) A A A A A A A A 

  Solar Energy Systems (Utility Scale) C -- -- -- -- -- -- C 

  Water storage tanks C C C C C C C C 
 

 

18

mailto:dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND PORTIONS OF: THE TABLE OF CONTENTS; SECTION 3.03.4 ENTITLED: LAND USE 
SUMMARY TABLE OF ALLOWED USES IN EACH ZONING DISTRICT; PORTIONS OF: SECTION 6.02 
ENTITLED DEFINITIONS; AND THE RENUMBERING OF DEFINITIONS AND PAGE NUMBERS. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW ZONING ORDINANCE LANGUAGE AMENDMENTS BE MADE: 
 
Amendment #1 –  
 
On page 39: To add the following line item use language within zoning ordinance Section 3.03.4 Land 
Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses in each Zoning District under the “Utilities” category: 
 
“Solar Energy Systems (Private use)”.  With placement of the letter “A” within the AP (Agricultural 
Preservation), AE (Agricultural Estates), NR (Non-Agricultural Residential Zoning District), SR (Suburban 
Residential), GC (General Commercial), HC (Highway Commercial), LI (Limited Industrial), and GI 
(General Industrial) zoning districts columns on the table related to this line item use. 
 
On page 92: To add the following definition, “Solar Array” as definition 158 to Article 6. Definitions. 
Section 6.02: Definitions as “158. Solar Array. Equipment used for private or utility scale solar energy 
systems.  Can be mounted on primary or accessory structures, on a racking system affixed to the ground, 
or integrated as a mechanical or structural component of a structure.” 
 
On page 92: To add the following definition, “Solar Energy Systems, Private” as definition 159 to Article 6. 
Definitions. Section 6.02: Definitions as “159. Solar Energy Systems, Private. A energy system that 
converts solar energy to usable thermal, mechanical, chemical, or electrical energy for immediate onsite 
use that already has an existing principal use on the same parcel.  Solar Energy Systems, Private shall 
be allowed only as an accessory use to a permitted principal use.  Systems can be mounted on primary 
or accessory structures, on a racking system affixed to the ground, or integrated as a mechanical or 
structural component of a structure.”  
 
Amendment #2 –  
 
On page 39: To add the following line item use language within zoning ordinance Section 3.03.4 Land 
Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses in each Zoning District under the “Utilities” category: 
 
“Solar Energy Systems, Utility Scale”.  With placement of the letter “C” within the AP (Agricultural 
Preservation) and the GI (General Industrial) zoning districts columns on the table related to this line item 
use and with the placement of “--" in the AE (Agricultural Estates), NR (Non-Agricultural Residential 
Zoning District), SR (Suburban Residential), GC (General Commercial), HC (Highway Commercial), and 
LI (Limited Industrial) zoning districts columns on the table related to this line item use. 
 
On page 92: To add the following definition of “Solar Energy Systems, Utility Scale” as definition 160 to 
Article 6. Definitions. Section 6.02: Definitions as “160. Solar Energy Systems, Utility Scale.  An energy 
system, commonly referred to as a “solar farm”, which converts solar energy to useable thermal, 
mechanical, chemical, or electrical energy for transmission through the electrical grid for offsite use or 
whole sale and/or retail sale.  Systems can be mounted on primary or accessory structures, on a racking 
system affixed to the ground, or integrated as a mechanical or structural component of a structure.  Utility 
scale solar energy systems do not include concentrating solar power (CSP) systems.” 
 
Amendment #3 –  

DRAFT LANGUAGE 

SUBJECT TO CHANGES 

19



 

 

 
Beginning on page 92, to re-designate or re-number the definitions in Article 6. Definitions. Section 6.02: 
Definitions 158 through 188.  The purpose is to add “Solar Array” as definition 158, “Solar Energy 
Systems, Private” as Definition 159, and “Solar Energy Systems, Utility Scale” as Definition 160 thereby 
pushing the existing definitions 158 through 188 ahead three positions with Article 6. Definitions. Section 
6.02 now including definitions 1 through 191.   
 
Beginning on page 82, to amend Article 6. Definitions by moving the start page from page 82 to page 83. 
 
On page iii: To repeal and replace “Section 6.01: Construction of Terms …….... 82” with “Section 6.01 
Construction of Terms ….. 83” 
 
On page iii: To repeal and replace “Section 6.02: Definitions …….... 82” with “Section 6.01: Definitions 
….. 83” 
 
THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
________________________   
Matthew Ung, Chairman    

      
________________________   
Jeremy Taylor, Vice-Chairman   

      
________________________   
Daniel Bittinger II 

    
Attest:       ________________________    
      Mark Nelson 
      
______________________________  ________________________ 
Patrick Gill, Woodbury County Auditor  Keith Radig 
 

Adoption Timeline: 
Date of Public Hearing and First Reading____________  
Date of Public Hearing and Second Reading____________ 
Date of Public Hearing and Third Reading____________ 
Date of Adoption_____________ 
Published/Effective Date____________ 

 

20



21



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – May 17, 2023 
TEMPORARY BORROW PIT – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL 

APPLICATION DETAILS PROPERTY DETAILS TABLE OF CONTENTS
BORROW AREA 
Owner/Applicant(s): Hennings Joint Trust (Donald Hennings) JB 
Holland Construction, Inc. 
Application Type: Conditional Use Permit – Temporary Borrow Site to 
remove earthen materials 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Total Acres: 36 
Current Use: Crop Land     Proposed Use: Crop Land

Pre-application Meeting: Not requested. 
Application Date: April 26, 2023 (Received May 1, 2023) 
Legal Notice Date May 20, 2023 (Board of Adjustment) 
Stakeholders’ (500’) Letter Date: May 18, 2023 
Zoning Commission Review Date: May 22, 2023
Board of Adjustment Public Hearing Date: June 5, 2023 

BORROW AREA 
Parcel(s): 884702100002 
Township: T88N R47W (Woodbury Township) 
Section: 2
Quarter: Government Lot 3 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Floodplain District: Zone X (Not in Floodplain)

□ Summary, Recommendation, Aerial & Proposed Area 
□ Review Criteria 
□ Applicant Comments 
□ Legal Notification 
□ Adjacent Owners' Notification 
□ Stakeholder Comments 
□ Supporting Documentation 
□ Application 

SUMMARY
JB Holland Construction, Inc. (Applicant) and property owner Donald Hennings of the Hennings Joint Trust have filed for a Conditional Use Permit 
application to establish a temporary borrow site to remove earthen materials to be used in Phase 1 and 2 of the east bound Highway 20 project (IDOT 
Project #17-97-020-010).  The proposed temporary borrow area is located on Parcel #884702100002 as referenced above.  The parcel is located on 
the south side of Highway 20 and is currently used as farm ground.  The proposed cut area is 8-10 acres.  The work area is 10 acres and the total 
excavation for export is 100,000-150,000 yrds3.  The parcel is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and not in the floodplain.  The 
applicant(s) have provided the necessary documentation for storm water management, soil erosion, dust control, haul routes, traffic entrances, hours 
of operation, and duration of operations.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and 
have been requested to comment.  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the 
proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  

PARCEL MAP BORROW AREA

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of this temporary borrow pits proposal as it can meet the conditional use permit criteria with 
the condition that an archeological study be completed for proposed site. 

Suggested Motion 
A motion to recommend approval of the temporary borrow pit with the condition that an archeological study be completed 
for proposed site. 

22



LEGAL NOTIFICATION FOR BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT PUBLIC HEARING
Will be published in the Sioux City Journal’s Legals Section on May 20, 2023 for the Board of Adjustment public hearing 
scheduled for June 5, 2023 at 6:00 PM at the Woodbury County Courthouse. 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION – 500’
The ten (10) property owners within 500 FT of both borrow sites; and listed within the certified abstractor’s affidavit; 
were notified by a May 18, 2023 letter of the public hearing before the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment on June 
5, 2023. 

As of the printing of this packet, the Community and Development office has received: 
- 0 Phone Inquiries 
- 0 Written Comments 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

BORROW SITE #1: PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN 500 FOOT RADIUS
Property Owner(s) Mailing Address Comments
Hennings Joint Trust 1970 Garner Ave. Moville IA 51039 No comments

Marnice Schellinger 2137 Buchanan Ave. 
Sergeant 
Bluff IA 51054 

No comments

Morningside Storage LLC 4109 Gordon Drive Sioux City IA 51106 No comments
Pauline M. Flannery 111 Grandy Drive Sioux City IA 51106 No comments
John M. Jackson & Lorali 
Jackson 115 Grandy Drive Sioux City IA 51106 

No comments

Dennis A. & Julie A. Fischer 
Trust 112 Grandy Drive Sioux City IA 51106 

No comments

Jay B. Todd & Stacey M. Todd 114 Grandy Drive Sioux City IA 51106 No comments
Georgie A. & John L. Quinlain 116 Grandy Drive Sioux City IA 51106 No comments
Ronald G. & Mary M. Clause 1611 Buchanan Ave. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments
Harold D. Sypersma Jr. 1649 Buchanan Ave. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): We have no comments regarding the proposed borrow. – Kelly Mulvihill, 5/9/23.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No issues from Magellan here. – Bryan Ferguson, 5/8/23.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the following Conditional Use Permit for MEC Electric and we have no 

conflicts. – Casey Meinen, 5/8/23. 
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No conflict for MEC “gas” on this either. – Tyler Ahlquist, 5/12/23.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments. No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request, NIPCO has no facilities at or adjacent to this location.  

NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 5/16/23. 
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I have no issues with the proposed borrow area.   Use of this area will benefit the county road 

by eliminating a severe snow trap.   Part of the use of the proposed borrow will be used to 
improve the Buchanan Avenue/US 20 intersection.  This intersection has long been a 
maintenance problem for the county.   The proposed improvements will reduce the grade of 
southbound Buchanan Avenue and prepare the road for paving, which is part of this project.   
This use is beneficial to the county.  Thank you for the opportunity to comment. – Mark Nahra, 
PE, 5/17/23. 

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
(REC): 

No comments.

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this borrow pit CUP, as long as all soil erosion 
control measures are implemented and monitored. – Neil Stockfleth, 5/8/23. 

23



ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board. 

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

24



CRITERIA 1:

The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located and 
that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury 
County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Staff Analysis:

The Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance includes the Agricultural 
Preservation (AP) Zoning District as a location authorized for a conditional use pending review by the Zoning Commission 
and approval by the Board of Adjustment.     

CRITERIA 2:

The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the goals, 
objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Staff Analysis:

The applicants have met or will meet the requirements necessary for a borrow pit including the issuance of a NPDES Permit 
2 from the Iowa Department of Natural Resources as well as having a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to 
control erosion.  It is the expectation of the general plan (Land Use Goal 1.6) as well as county and state policies to ensure 
that “standards and practices for land development to minimize soil erosion and damaging water runoff, particularly in the 
fragile soils of the Loess Hills area of the county.” 

CRITERIA 3:

The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the character 
of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and general 
welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Staff Analysis:

The borrow pit would have a temporary impact on the neighborhood during the extraction and transfer period.  As long as the 
requirements as set forth by the Iowa Department of Transportation (IDOT) are met for the transfer and the SWPPP are 
followed for erosion control, there would be a temporary impact.  There does not appear to be any significant impact to parking, 
utility facilities, or other factors affecting public health.   

25



CRITERIA 4:

The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of 
surrounding property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Staff Analysis:

The temporary borrow pit is to be located, designed, and constructed in a manner that will have a minimal impact on the area 
during the time of extraction and transfer.  As long as the location is returned back to farm ground and the SWPPP are 
appropriately followed for erosion control, there should be a minimal impact.   

CRITERIA 5:

Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Staff Analysis:

Not applicable to the proposed use. 

CRITERIA 6:

The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or historic 
features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Staff Analysis:

The applicant must work within the guidelines of the NPDES #2 and Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to 
prevent any unnecessary adverse effects to the property and return the property to farm ground.   

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1:

The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service or facility that is in 
the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Staff Analysis:

This temporary borrow pit is being requested to support the east bound Highway 20 project (IDOT Project #17-97-020-010.  
The borrow extraction from the requested locations can be construed as a service in the public interest to complete improves 
to local transportation.   

OTHER CONSIDERATION 2:

All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to minimize any 
adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Staff Analysis:

Steps should be taken to return the property to farm ground. 

26



APPLICATION

27



28



29



30



GRADING PERMIT APPLICATION(S)

31



PARCEL REPORT

32



SOIL REPORT

33



ELEVATION IMAGERY

34



NPDES #2 Permit – Iowa Department of Natural Resources

35



36



37



38



39



40



STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP)

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – MAY 17, 2023 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL - DEMAND RESPONSE LOAD RESOURCE

APPLICATION DETAILS PROPERTY DETAILS TABLE OF CONTENTS

Owner/Applicant(s): Brenden Patricia A Revocable Trust and 
WIFI LLC 
Application Type: Conditional Use Permit - To place a 
demand response load resource next to the substation in 
conjunction with local 
electric utility to support grid resiliency 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Total Acres: 1 acre 
Current Use: Farm Ground Proposed Use: Operation of Data 
Processing Business 
Pre-application Meeting: March 31, 2023 
Application Date: May 1, 2023 
Legal Notice Date: May 20, 2023 (Board of Adjustment) 
Stakeholders’ (500’) Letter Date: May 18, 2023 
Zoning Commission Review Date: May 22, 2023 
Board of Adjustment Public Hearing Date: June 5, 2023 

Parcel(s): 864723300010
Township: T86N R47W (Lakeport 
Township) 
Section: 23 
Quarter: NW ¼ of the SW 1/4 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation 
(AP) 
Floodplain District: Zone X (Not in 
Floodplain) 
Address: None 

□ Summary, Recommendation, Aerial & Proposed 
Area 
□ Review Criteria 
□ Applicant Comments 
□ Legal Notification 
□ Adjacent Owners' Notification 
□ Stakeholder Comments 
□ Supporting Documentation 
□ Application 

SUMMARY
WIFI LLC (Applicant) and property owners Brenden Patricia A. Revocable Trust have filed for a Conditional Use Permit application “to place a 
demand response load resource next to the substation in conjunction with local electric utility to support grid resiliency” for the proposed use to 
operate a data processing business.  The proposed site is on Parcel #864723300010 as referenced above.  The parcel is located in the Agricultural 
Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located in the floodplain.  The Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) of the Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance does not reference data processing or this specific request by the applicant.  However, this can be interpreted under Section 3.03.3 of the 
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance as a comparable utility use or comparable to the industrial use of research and development laboratories in the 
sense of data analysis.  Therefore, for the purposes of this request, data processing can be interpreted as a conditional use under section 3.03.3 in 
the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  Hence, based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and 
Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets appropriate criteria for approval. Staff recommends approval.

SITE PLAN AERIAL VIEW

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the conditional use permit “to place a demand response load resource next to the 
substation in conjunction with local electric utility to support grid resiliency” for the proposed use to operate a data 
processing business.   

Suggested Motion: 
Motion to recommend approval of the conditional use permit “to place a demand response load resource next to the 
substation in conjunction with local electric utility to support grid resiliency” for the proposed use to operate a data 
processing business.   

52



LEGAL NOTIFICATION FOR BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT PUBLIC HEARING
Will be published in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on May 20, 2023 for the June 5, 2023 Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing. 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION
The four (4) property owners within 500 FT; and listed within the certified abstractor’s affidavit; were notified by an 
May 18, 2023 letter of the public hearing before the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment June 5, 2023. 

As of the printing of this packet, the Community and Development office has received: 
- 0 Phone Inquiries 
- 0 Written Comments 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

Property Owner(s) Mailing Address Comments
Terrance M. & Nancy K. Small 
Revocable Trust 3095 Calhoun Ave. Salix IA 51052 

No comments. 

CHO, LLP: Attn: Charles H. 
Oehlerking PO BOX 168 Sergeant Bluff IA 51054

No comments. 

J M Farms Inc 3211 Dallas Ave. Sloan IA 51055 No comments. 
Patricia A. Brenden Revocable 
Trust AND Jeffrey L. & Leah B. 
Brouillette Joint Revocable Trust 
ATTN: Patricia A. Brenden 
Revocable Trust 113 Halls Beach Path Salix IA 51052

No comments. 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the following conditional use permit for MEC electric and we have no 

conflicts. – Casey Meinen, 5/8/23. 
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No conflict for MEC “gas”. – Tyler Ahlquist, 5/12/23.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request.  NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 

5/16/23. 
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I have no comments in regard to the proposed conditional use.  The parcel is served by a 

driveway that was constructed at the time of the last improvement to this substation.   The 
access to the site is adequate and exceeds minimum sight distance requirements. – Mark 
Nahra, PE., 5/15/23. 

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments. Thank you – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 5/8/23.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
(REC): 

SEE LETTER BELOW

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this CUP request. – Neil Stockfleth, 5/8/23.

53



WOODBURY COUNTY REC – KENT AMUNDSON, MAY 12, 2023

54



ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board. 

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

The proposed conditional use will be an Operation of Data Processing Business consisting of two transformers, two electrical 
switchgears, two modular data-centers and one Tuff Shed Work Area. The dirt work to complete such would be minimal, and 
not transforming to the land itself. This is slab on grade work with no footings with this style build the land is able to be returned 
to original state once the lease with the landowner is complete. Traffic for such projects will be limited and the site will be clean 
and well managed. The sound produced from this site is also limited. (Picture of previous site construction provided)  

As we have developed several successful sites throughout Iowa, we have plans to grow to surrounding states as well. 
Considering this project requires many working parts, there is a well thought out plan in place. Architects are hired to plan out 
the sites as well as create a well detailed layout per the land itself. After the layout has been decided and approved by the 
land owners, dirt is moved, conduit is placed underground, pods/buildings are placed. These sites are cut and dry, clean and 
well organized. These sites will draw attention solely based on curiosity. The site itself is clean, well isolated and minimal in 
sound. 

CRITERIA 1:

The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located and 
that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury 
County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

The property is currently zoned as agricultural. Applicant currently holds a lease with the landowner. The landowner has given 
permission to build such Data Processing Business on the property. The buildings/containers are slab on grade construction. 
In previous projects we have been able to utilize a special use permit. With Woodbury County this is not an option, therefore 
we are applying for a conditional use permit.  

We would like to apply for the conditional use permit under the zoning ordinance of UTILITIES.  

Utility Substation (AP) (AE) (GC) (GI) : This Data Processing Business will be located directly beside the substation. This will 
essentially be an extension of the Substation. The power used is excess power unused by the utility. This benefits the CoOp 
as well as the members. (letter from the utility will be provided in support of this project). This follows the standard Woodbury 
stands by causing no pollution to the air, water, or land.  

We believe that demand side response (DSR) has a vital role to play in the evolution of electricity markets. DSR gives 
customers more insight and therefore more control. DSR helps to reduce costs across the energy supply chain. Security of 
supply is improved by enabling everyone to make better use of alternative energy sources. Businesses of all shapes and sizes 
can make money, reduce their bills and cut their carbon footprint by getting involved in DSR. 

Staff Analysis:

The Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance does not reference data 
processing or this specific request by the applicant.  However, this can be interpreted under Section 3.03.3 of the Woodbury 
County Zoning Ordinance as a comparable utility or comparable to the industrial use of research and development laboratories 
in the sense of business data analysis.  Therefore, for the purposes of this request, data processing can be interpreted as a 
conditional use under section 3.03.3 in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  

CRITERIA 2:

The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the goals, 
objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

55



The purpose of use is a demand response modular data center consisting of two transformers, two electrical switchgear, two 
modular data-centers and one Tuff Shed Work Area.  

Demand side response opportunities: We believe that demand side response (DSR) has a vital role to play in the evolution of 
electricity markets. DSR gives customers more insight and therefore more control. DSR helps to reduce costs across the 
energy supply chain. Security of supply is improved by enabling everyone to make better use of alternative energy sources. 
Businesses of all shapes and sizes can make money, reduce their bills and cut their carbon footprint by getting involved in 
DSR.  

This land will provide jobs in the surrounding community. This would assist “The mix and interrelationships between urban 
and rural economies and lifestyles is an opportunity to have the best of both worlds.” as listed as a strength of Woodbury 
Community. The data center would also continue to preserve environmental assets such as abundant clean air and water and 
resources such as the Loess Hills, Missouri and Little Sioux Rivers and the fertile soils due to no waste, runoff or air pollution.

Staff Analysis:

This request is compatible with the Economic Development Goals and Commercial and Industrial Business Goals of the 2005 
Woodbury County General Development Plan. 

CRITERIA 3:

The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the character 
of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and general 
welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Activities and function of the proposed use will not affect adjacent property or affect the character of the neighborhood, traffic 
conditions, utility facilities. The proposed use will not have conflicts with or reduce the usefulness or value or create other 
negative impacts on adjoining property or properties in the general area, including public health, safety and welfare. The 
proposed use and development will use more renewable energy and add high-tech jobs to the area. 

Staff Analysis:

Based on the information received, it appears this project will not adversely impact the neighborhood or the other aspects as 
referenced in Criteria #3. 

CRITERIA 4:

The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of 
surrounding property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

This is an agricultural area and with no neighborhood, the Data Processing Business needs to be close to a substation to use 
the excess power, and the market has competitive rates. The business uses slab on grad construction. There will not be 
disruption to the land, neighborhood, or surrounding property.  

These sites are a process. The process starts with the people that believe in bettering the future. Not only is this an extra
income for the landowners, but also the community. This access MW is utilized from the utility and substation. While using the 
extra energy, it is also a source of giving back to the community. On extremely hot days, or days that utilize more energy- this 
site is able to give back to the community to utilize the extra power when necessary. 

Staff Analysis:

The plan presented does not appear to adversely impact the items as referenced in Criteria #4. 

CRITERIA 5:

Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

We are creating and building local Iowa talent with training programs at the local colleges. As a company we prioritize working 
locally. We hire local contractors and small businesses to help construct these sites. We utilize the local talent. From 
electricians, concrete, dirt work, architects, and buildings they are all local businesses.  

56



Each site will support two full time technicians making an average of $26 per hour. Technicians will receive health care benefits 
and company house/ utilities. An additional hardin county based support staff will be hired to assist with further site 
developments and community relations upon the completion of these two facilities. Not only does this site bring in local talent 
to build parts of our future, this site will also employ others in the community. Applicant will hire on employees/techs to help 
run the site. While also working to provide internships with local colleges to help educate in the technology field. 

Staff Analysis:

This location was selected due to its proximity to Woodbury County REC’s electrical substation.   

CRITERIA 6:

The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or historic 
features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

There will not be disruption to the land, neighborhood, or surrounding property. Although the land is currently zoned as 
agricultural(rural area with no neighborhood or historic features), it cannot be utilized to its fullest potential due to the 
substation's location. The location of the site is directly beside the substation, land that is not utilized in the farming culture. 
Mapping out the site will provide the future farmers with easier access to farming their own land. Healthy balance with 
traditional agriculture and other business enterprises. The Data Processing Business needs to be close to a substation to use
the excess power, and the market has competitive rates. There will not be disruption to the land, neighborhood, or surrounding 
property 

Staff Analysis:

This proposal does not appear to significantly impact the items as referenced in Criteria #6. 

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1:

The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service or facility that is in 
the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Staff Analysis:

Locating this business at this location could be construed as adding to the tax-base. 

OTHER CONSIDERATION 2:

All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to minimize any 
adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Staff Analysis:

The property owners should consider measures to secure the property. 

57



SITE PLAN

Example Site. 

58



APPLICATION

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



ZONING MAP

66



PARCEL REPORT

67



ELEVATION MAP

68



WHAT IS A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN?

Follow the project on Facebook to stay up to date! 
facebook.com/WoodburyCoCompPlan2040

 •A vision for the future
 •A decision-making guide: 
what goes where?
 •A basis for policy
 •Flexible and adaptive

A comprehensive 
plan is:

A comprehensive 
plan is not:

 •A zoning ordinance
 •A rigid, unchanging policy
 •Specific in scope
 •The only planning tool used 
by the county

Steering committee 
kick-off meeting

Steering committee 
meeting #2

Steering committee 
meeting #3

Steering committee 
meeting #4

Planning and Zoning 
Board Approval

Public input survey

Public outreach pop-
up event

Open houses (4)

Public Review Period

Public Hearing to adopt final 
plan - Board of Supervisors

(Summer 2023)

Plan Timeline

Woodbury County is a place where:
• •   rural character rural character and a and a strong sense of communitystrong sense of community are shared;  are shared; 
• •   land developmentland development is managed in a way that complements  is managed in a way that complements 

and and enhances the County’s character enhances the County’s character and and upholds residents’ upholds residents’ 
idealsideals;;

• • economic development is rooted in a economic development is rooted in a diverse, agriculture-diverse, agriculture-
based economybased economy, focused on opportunities to grow and , focused on opportunities to grow and enhance enhance 
existing businesses and industryexisting businesses and industry, provide a supportive , provide a supportive 
environment for environment for new enterprisesnew enterprises, and develop a , and develop a robust robust 
workforceworkforce;  ;  

• • conservation and conservation and stewardship of natural resourcesstewardship of natural resources is a matter  is a matter 
of pride and shared ownership;of pride and shared ownership;

• • demand for a demand for a quality and affordable standard of livingquality and affordable standard of living is met; is met;
• • government exists to government exists to serve people and to protect the public serve people and to protect the public 

health, safety, and welfare to ensure a prosperous and health, safety, and welfare to ensure a prosperous and 
resilient future.resilient future.

Draft Vision Statement

”

“

Final public open 
house

Steering committee 
meeting #5

69



HOUSING
Improve the condition of existing housing 
stock to ensure homes are safe, efficient, and 
resilient.

 •Provide rehabilitation assistance resources for home-
owners living in historic or outdated structures.
 •Target outreach to minority and under-resourced com-
munities to ensure that information and resources are 
equitably distributed.
 •Target outreach to homeowners that may be impact-
ed by disasters, in need of septic system updates, lead 
abatement, or other immediate safety concerns.

Increase the variety of housing options to 
maximize affordability and availability for res-
idents of all income levels.

 •Encourage flexible zoning to allow for home additions 
and accessory units.
 •Increase the quantity of high quality, affordable rental 

Goals
units by encouraging the development of a variety of 
multi-family housing options within incorporated cit-
ies that meet the diverse needs of residents of all ages.
 •Increase the number of affordable housing units in 
Woodbury County.
 •Encourage the development of upper story units above 
downtown store fronts to introduce additional hous-
ing variety in small towns. 

Preserve the rural character of the county.
 •Limit density in rural areas outside of incorporated cit-
ies. 
 •Protect agricultural land, wildlife habitat, and outdoor 
recreational land. 
 •Prioritize new development to locate adjacent to ex-
isting town limits, and prioritize the rehabilitation of 
existing structures, infill development, and brownfield 
redevelopment. 

 

Image source: Iowa Land Company

Expand access to safe, high-quality housing 
for all residents of Woodbury County. 

 •Direct funding toward the provision of high-quality, af-
fordable housing options for vulnerable populations: 
low-income residents, seniors, and residents with dis-
abilities.
 •Direct funding toward emergency shelters, housing, 
and social work services for homeless individuals liv-
ing in the county.
 •Connect residents with funding opportunities that 
provide financial assistance for housing rehab.

Assist residents in the path from renting to 
becoming homeowners.

 •Connect residents with information and resources 
that aid in the purchase of homes, such as down pay-
ment assistance grants for first time or low-income 
residents, and low-cost financial counseling. Particular 
care should be taken to reach out to residents of col-
or and immigrant communities with these opportuni-
ties; providing resources, information, and support in 
residents’ native language when applicable.

70



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Coordinate economic development initia-
tives with regional priorities.

 •Coordinate economic development initiatives with 
the Comprehensive Economi Development Strategy 
(CEDS) Committee and refer to the CEDS document to 
ensure alignment with the goals and strategies there-
in.

Maintain core industries that are the back-
bone of Woodbury County’s economy by 
marketing Siouxland as a regional center for 
food production and related agricultural in-
dustries. 

 •Maintain Woodbury County’s ACT® Work Ready Com-
munity status.
 •Continually communicate with industry leaders to 
identify emerging in-demand skills and qualifications.
 •Work with local colleges and high schools to continual-
ly improve training opportunities for students to learn 
in-demand skills necessary to support the region’s in-
dustry clusters.
 •Coordinate across jurisdictions to assist in the market-
ing and promotion of the county’s Certified Sites. 

Goals
Encourage the diversification of Woodbury 
County’s economy, in support of small busi-
nesses which generate nearly half of all eco-
nomic activity nationwide, as well as larger 
enterprises.

 •Coordinate with city jurisdictions of Woodbury Coun-
ty to offer access to supportive resources, networking 
opportunities, and financial information for residents 
interested in starting a small business.
 •Maintain partnership with Iowa’s West Coast Initiative 
to develop economic opportunities in the Siouxland 
region.
 •Consider the development of alternative energy indus-
try partnerships.
 •Provide language supports for non-English speaking 
business owners, prospective business owners ,and 
employees where necessary.

Image source: MessengerNews.net

Work to enhance Woodbury County’s quality 
of life to draw and retain families, employees, 
and residents of all ages in the region.
• Continue to invest in innovative improvements such 

as recreation and entertainment opportunities.
• Build upon unique assets of the county, such as natu-

ral features and historical resources to create enriching 
cultural experiences for residents.

• Improve access to internet connectivity by investing in 
broadband infrastructure.

Ensure that educational and economic op-
portunities are equitably accessible to all res-
idents regardless of race, age, sex, religion, 
or ability.

 •Continue to identify and facilitate access to appropri-
ate supports and resources for residents struggling 
with poverty.
 •Work across jurisdictions and with underrepresented 
populations, such as people of color, low-income resi-
dents, and those with disabilities, to identify barriers to 
educational access and provide appropriate services 
and support.
 •Actively market educational and job opportunities to 
underrepresented communities. 

Encourage healthy lifestyles to maximize res-
idents’ quality of life.

 •Support the expansion of health services such as clin-
ics and exercise facilities in rural areas.
 •Refer to the Siouxland District Health Department’s 
Health Needs Assessment and Health Improvement 
Plan for guidance and consider the health and wellness 
impacts of all county activities, programs, and policies.
 •Support education for regular wellness exams to in-
crease early detection of serious illness.

71



TRANSPORTATION
Prioritize user safety across all transportation 
modes in Woodbury County.

 • Continually seek to improve safety for all transporta-
tion users.
 • Continue to rehabilitate or replace poorly-rated bridg-
es. 
 • Continue to work with Iowa DOT and the public to iden-
tify highways in need of maintenance or resurfacing.
 • Work with municipal and state jurisdictions to address 
sources of frequent traffic incidents.
 • Provide safety-enhancing infrastructure dedicated to 
bicyclists and pedestrians to reduce conflicts between 
these users and vehicles. 
 • Seek funding for railroad crossing safety improve-
ments.
 • Incorprate principles of the Federal Highway Adminis-
tration’s Safe System Approach into roadway design to 
reduce crash frequency and severity.

Ensure equitable access to Woodbury Coun-
ty’s transportation system for all residents.

 • Promote the Siouxland Regional Transit System 
throughout the county, making information available 
in Spanish and other frequently-spoken languages..

Goals
 • Consider the needs of all transportation users, especial-
ly those who have mobility limitations due to physical, 
intellectual, or developmental disability; age; income; 
or language barriers. 
 • Support the use of alternative modes of transportation 
with the installation of infrastructure such as bicycle 
facilities, sidewalks, trails, and greenways.

Mitigate the environmental impacts of trans-
portation projects while proactively seeking 
opportunities for long-term transportation 
sustainability investments.

 • Take advantage of federal and state funding to ex-
pand infrastructure for electric vehicles throughout 
the county, including rural areas.
 • Preserve scenic views, open space, and historic or cul-
tural features along the Loess Hills National Scenic By-
way.
 • Refer to the Environmental Mitigation Activities of the 
SRTPA Long Range Transportation Plan before and 
throughout all transportation planning and develop-
ment activities.
 • Collaborate with environmental stewardship organi-
zations to determine the potential consequences of 

Image source: Golden Hills RC&D

transportation projects for natural and cultural resourc-
es, and residents’ health. Care should be taken to avoid 
or minimize these impacts.
 • Work with the Siouxland Regional Transit System to 
promote public and shared transit opportunities to 
employers, such as vanpooling.
 • Partner with municipalities to develop carpooling lots 
where residents can leave vechicles during work hours.

Expand the network of multi-use trails in 
Woodbury County.

 • Collaborate with the Woodbury County Conservation 
Board to maintain and expand the County trail system.
 • Strive to make regional trail connections between the 
trail systems of County and municipal parks. 
 • Align County trail plans with the vision, goals, strate-
gies, and recommendations of the Iowa Department 
of Transportation’s Bicycle and Pedestrian Long Range 
Plan.

Maintain the quality and efficiency of high 
priority roadways that are essential to the re-
gional economy.

 • Prioritize higher-volume roadways and those that are 
used to transport goods, such as farm to market routes, 
roadways along industrial and commercial corridors, 
and roadways connecting to intermodal facilities for 
rehabilitation and repair.
 • Encourage projects that increase efficiency, minimize 
congestion, and reduce energy expenditure.
 • Consider life cycle costs in decision-making, taking into 
account the cost of maintaining new infrastructure in 
the long-term. 
 • Where possible, prioritize improvement of existing sys-
tems over expansion of new infrastructure. 
 • Support the maintenance and expansion of commer-
cial airline service in Sioux Gateway Airport.
 • Support the establishment of additional barge termi-
nals on the Missouri River where river conditions allow.
 • Support efficient development of commercial and in-
dustrial operations in the Southbridge Interchange re-
gion.

Loess Hills Scenic Byway

Image source: Messenger News

72



PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE & UTILITIES
Expand upon publicly available information 
on the Woodbury County website.
• Electronically publish up-to-date planning documents,

meeting information, and maps for all county depart-
ments.

• Share County data in a downloadable, practical format.
Encourage energy efficiency for residential, 
commercial, and industrial consumers in 
Woodbury County.
• Bring awareness to energy efficiency incentive and as-

sessment programs available through MidAmerican
Energy and Woodbury County REC.

Support technological advances in energy 
production.
• Work with energy providers to diversify and expand

energy sources.
Ensure safe drinking water for all rural Wood-
bury County residents
• Provide educational materials about the importance

of regular well inspections and bring awareness to free
well inspections offered by the county

• Maintain compliance with state and federal standards
for community water systems

Protect ground and surface water from con-
tamination.
• Seal and regularly inspect wellheads that are no lon-

ger in use.
• Provide resources and information to rural residents

about septic system maintenance.
• Provide information to realtors about the time of trans-

fer process for septic system inspection when selling
properties.

• Connect farmers and ranchers with technical assis-
tance and resources for preventing fertilizer and ani-
mal waste runoff.

• Encourage the use of green infrastructure for storm-
water management where water carrying concentrat-
ed contaminants is likely to be intercepted.

• Align County Conservation Board actions with the

Goals
goals and strategies outlined in Iowa’s Nonpoint Source 
Management Plan and collaborate with the Iowa De-
partment of Natural Resources to mitigate nonpoint 
source water pollution.

Encourage practices that increase water effi-
ciency amongst County residents, commer-
cial establishments, institutions, and munic-
ipal utilities.
• Encourage the use of strategies and best practices out-

lined in the Iowa Association of Municipal Utilities’ ef-
ficiency planning and conservation workbook, Water-
Wise.

• Adopt water saving practices in County buildings.
Improve internet access for rural Woodbury 
County residents.
• Take advantage of federal and state sources of fund-

ing to improve broadband infrastructure in rural areas.
Expand cellular service in rural Woodbury 
County. 
• Coordinate with telecommunications companies to

address areas with poor reception
Promote waste reduction and recycling prac-
tices.
• Encourage and educate on innovative initiatives such 

as community composting, yard waste disposal, in-
stitution-level waste reduction plans (government, 
schools, festivals, event spaces), and repurpos-ing/
repairing/borrowing/trading used items.

• Reduce and enforce illegal dumping in rural Wood-
bury County.

• Provide education on handling and disposal of trees 
and brush.

• Coordinate across jurisdictions to address waste man-
agement gaps identified in the 2020 Municipal Solid 
Waste (MSW) Satisfaction Survey that was distributed 
in development of the Woodbury County Area Solid 
Waste Agency’s Comprehensive Plan.

• Participate in the State of Iowa’s Solid Waste Environ-
mental Management Systems (EMS) program. Image source: siouxcityjournal.com

• Coordinate across regional jurisdictions to improve ac-
cess to recycling services in rural areas.

• Implement and encourage the utilization of programs
and best practices provided by the Iowa Department of
Natural Resources’ Financial and Business Assistance
(FABA) department.

• Consider results of the Iowa Statewide Waste Character-
ization Study in goal setting and when planning the cre-
ation or expansion of waste management services and
programs.

Expand the network of public electric vehicle 
charging stations to rural Woodbury County.
• Continue work with other local, regional, and state lead-

ers to develop an electric vehicle infrastructure plan.
• Apply for federal and state funding for rural electric vehi-

cle infrastructure.

73



COMMUNITY FACILITIES & SERVICES
Expand access to health services throughout 
rural Woodbury County.

 • Work with the Siouxland District Health Department 
to expand access to preventative health care services 
in rural communities.
 • Continue to market the services of the Siouxland Dis-
trict Health Department widely across rural Woodbury 
County.
 • Evaluate emergency medical response times and out-
comes for rural residents to identify how these services 
can be improved.
 •  Continue partnering with the Rolling Hills Communi-
ty Services Region for mental health, disabilities, and 
crisis care services.
 • Refer to the Siouxland District Health Department’s 
Health Needs Assessment and Health Improvement 
Plan for guidance. 

Provide more opportunities for outdoor rec-
reation activities.

 • Maintain the current activities of the Woodbury Coun-
ty Conservation Board and support the expansion of 

Goals
their programming and scope of work. 
 • Improve the functionality and visibility of county-owned 
river access points. 
 • Prioritize water quality and river restoration initiatives.
 • Pursue opportunities to develop water trails through-
out the county.
 • Develop a countywide trail program connecting com-
munities with one another and the county park net-
work.
 • Evaluate the condition and availability of county-owned 
cabins and park shelters.

Increase access to family-friendly activities 
and cultural opportunities in rural Woodbury 
County.

 • Encourage cooperation and resource sharing between 
nearby towns to create and expand upon parks and 
recreation opportunities for rural residents.
 • Expand community education opportunities for resi-
dents of rural Woodbury County that celebrate the re-
gion’s historical, cultural, and natural resources.

Strive to offer the most efficient, cost-effec-
tive, and user-friendly community services as 
possible.

 • Improve digital operations to maximize accessibility 
and the availability of public information and data.
 • Streamline service delivery and operations.

Provide adequate police, fire, and emergen-
cy management services for all Woodbury 
County residents.

 • Maintain cooperative agreements (28E) for emergen-
cy and public safety services.
 • Encourage frequent training opportunities for all emer-
gency service providers.
 • Ensure adequate funding for emergency response ac-
tivities.

Image source: Siouxlandnews.com Image source: Woodbury County Image source: Siouxcityjournal.com

74



LAND USE & NATURAL RESOURCES
Support sustainable agricultural practices.

 • Ensure compliance with Iowa state code provisions for 
agriculturally-zoned property.
 • Promote the use of agricultural best management 
practices to reduce soil and fertilizer runoff, protect 
water quality, and manage animal waste. 
 • Encourage participation in federal incentive programs 
that pay farmers and ranchers for the implementation 
of conservation best practices.
 • Consider the use of sliding scale zoning to prevent the 
fragmentation of large tracts of farmland.
 • Advocate for the preservation of agriculture in urban 
fringe areas not identified in the future land use map 
for urban growth.
 • Connect small and mid-sized farm businesses with suc-
cession planning resources and technical assistance.
 • Create a roundtable of farmers and local agricultural 
businesses to voice concerns and needed resources to 
maintain sustainable business operations.
 • Advocate for the adoption of local food purchasing 
policies that support public and institutional procure-
ment from small and mid-sized local farmers. 

Preserve environmentally sensitive lands.
 • Consider the manner in which environmentally sen-
sitive lands are developed, including wetlands, flood-
plains, prime agriculture, wildlife habitat, and open 
space for recreation.
 • Encourage communication and cooperation between 
environmental advocates and landowners related to 
development of sensitive land.
 • Strengthen erosion control policies and grade and ex-
cavation limitations for development in the Loess Hills.
 • Encourage landowner participation in federal conser-
vation easement programs that provide financial in-
centives for safeguarding natural resources on their 
property.
 • Continue adding to the county’s network of parks, trails, 
and campgrounds.
 • Coordinate across jurisdictions to address litter and the 
dumping of waste.

Limit urban sprawl and maintain the rural char-
acter of Woodbury County.

 • Prioritize the rehabilitation of existing housing stock 
and infill development before building on previous-
ly-undeveloped land. 
 • Consider the lifetime costs of new infrastructure de-
velopment. 
 • Limit interstate development to interchanges or to 
within city jurisdictions to preserve agricultural land 
and maintain scenic views of the Loess Hills.
 • Discourage leap-frog development outside of incorpo-
rated cities and limit density in unincorporated areas.
 • Guide future development of non-agricultural uses to 
a compact pattern by efficient and economical expan-
sion of public infrastructure.

Empower landowners to be a partner in combat-
ting ecologically and economically harmful inva-
sive and noxious species. 

 • Educate the public about effective identification, con-
trol, and disposal of invasive species. 
 • Distribute information about proper disposal of woody 
debris and brush from private property, and how to 
handle woody debris that has been impacted by inva-
sive species such as the Emerald Ash Borer. 

Reduce contaminants in surface water runoff. 

 • Provide resources for farmers to adopt best manage-
ment practices.
 • Provide resources for farmers to adopt BMPs such as 
no-till methods and cover crops, to reduce nutrient 
loads entering waterways as non-point source pollu-
tion. Refer to the Iowa Nutrient Reduction Strategy, 
and programs of the USDA’s National Resources Con-
servation Service for farmers in need of assistance. 
 • Continue sensible salting policies.
 • Educate residents and business owners of proper lawn 
fertilizer and chemical use.
 • Limit the density of properties requiring individual sep-
tic systems, maintain stringent standards for system 
inspections, and provide resources for homeowners to 
assist in maintaining these systems. 

Safeguard groundwater by identifying and limit-
ing sources of pollution. 

 • Encourage landowners to take advantage of the Iowa 
DNR’s wellhead protection program that provides 
cost-sharing and assistance for sealing unused wells, 
and planting nitrate-remediating plants near active 
wellheads.

Identify potential sources of air quality hazards 
in Woodbury County.

 • Maintain a network of low-cost air quality monitors 
throughout the rural county.

Maintain safe distances between industrial land 
use activities and residential, commercial, and in-
stitutional land uses.

 • Ensure that no residential communities are impact-
ed or harmed by off-site industrial activities, such as 
trucking routes or railyard air hazards.

Plan for the creation and use of alternative and 
renewable energy sources in Woodbury County.

 • Support landowners’ individual choices to implement 
renewable energy infrastructure.
 • Continuously update policies that regulate renewable 
energy infrastructure to ensure that it does not pres-
ent safety hazards and to minimize disruptions to sur-
rounding land uses. 
 • Seek federal and state funding for the expansion of 
electric vehicle charging infrastructure. 

Image source: siouxcityjournal.com

Goals

75



DRAFT FUTURE LAND USE MAP
Please note: A land 
use map does NOT 
denote current or fu-
ture zoning. It does 
NOT dictate what 
must occur on any in-
dividuals’ property.

The purpose of a land 
use map is to illustrate 
expected and desired 
future development 
patterns. 

It is a community’s 
vision for the future 
that broadly guides 
the density, character, 
and location of land 
uses. 

Land uses illustrated 
by the map include 
industrial, commer-
cial, agricultural, open 
space, and residential 
activities.

BRONSON

PIERSON

OTO

CUSHING

SIOUX CITY

CORRECTIONVILLE

MOVILLE

ANTHON

SMITHLANDHORNICK DANBURY

SERGEANT
BLUFF

LAWTON

SLOAN

SALIX

UV243UV105

UV141

UV982

UV140UV12

UV175

UV31

UV35

UV31

UV110

£¤77
£¤20

£¤77

£¤75

£¤75

£¤75

£¤20 £¤20

£¤77 £¤75

§̈¦129

§̈¦29

§̈¦29
Legend

Agriculture
Commercial
Industrial
Winnebago Reservation
Open Space/Recreation
Rural Residential
Transitional Agriculture

Incorperated Areas

Draft Future Land Use Map

0 3 6
Miles

76



 

Land Use Designations 
The maps and information on the following pages summarize Woodbury County’s current land 
use patterns and changes in land cover in recent years. This is followed by a future land use 
map which is used to establish ideal land use patterns for the next 20 years and to facilitate 
the orderly development and preservation of land in the county. The designations below 
describe each land use category found in the key of the current and future land use maps.  
 
Agriculture  
Land designated as Agriculture is primarily used for farming, ranching, other agricultural 
businesses, and related operations. Residential density is typically limited to preserve large, 
continuous areas of workable land, uninterrupted by development.  
 
Transitional Agriculture  
Land in the Transitional Agriculture designation typically borders between traditional 
agricultural use and residential uses. This designation offers flexibility for the development of 
a variety of compatible uses based on the surrounding context and needs of the community.  
 
Commercial  
The Commercial land use designation describes corridors appropriate for commercial 
development, such as adjacent to similar or compatible developments within city limits and 
along state or county highways.  
 
Industrial 
The industrial land use designation is for county land that is primarily used for heavy and light 
industrial activities, such as warehousing, transportation, manufacturing, and the storage of 
construction materials. The activities taking place in these areas are typically not compatible 
with other uses due to potential air and noise pollution, use of hazardous materials, heavy 
machinery and traffic, and other nuisances.  
 
Rural Residential 
The Rural Residential land use designation describes areas primarily devoted to residential 
uses outside of incorporated city limits. This includes rural housing developments where 
agricultural uses are not permitted, as well as larger lot residential estates and acreages where 
agricultural activities may take place.  
 
Open Space/Recreational 
These areas include parks and natural areas maintained by the county or Iowa Department of 
Natural Resources. The purpose of inclusion of these areas in the future land use map is to 
ensure their protection into the future. Inclusion of these areas on the map also helps to 
visualize connections between parks and recreation areas when considering expansions to the 
county’s green space network.  
 
Incorporated Areas: 
Land under the jurisdiction of incorporated cities, not belonging to the county. 
 

77



DISASTER RESPONSE, 
RECOVERY, AND RESILIENCY

Coordinate disaster response, recovery and resil-
iency efforts among jurisdictions, county, state, 
and federal agencies. 

 • Foster interagency agreements to bolster response 
and recovery to emergency and disaster events and 
encourage resource sharing.
 • Keep open lines of communication between County 
departments and surrounding jurisdictions and coun-
ties.
 • Work with State and Federal officials in preparation of 
and response to disaster declarations and subsequent 
disaster relief efforts.

Encourage passive development within 100-yr 
floodplain areas.

 • Work to ensure that developed areas within floodplains 
are safe and secure.
 • Take advantage of state and federal programs designed 
to aid, relocate, or demolish properties within high-risk 
flood areas when necessary.
 • Consider site plan design, best building practices, and 
federal standards when development within a flood-
plain occurs.

Support the County Emergency Management 
and Emergency Services Departments’ missions 
to provide the most efficient services to Wood-
bury County and to mitigate against, prepare for, 
respond to, and recover from all disasters.

 • Work to complete the Woodbury County action items 
identified in the 2020 Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan, 
and future approved plans.
 • Coordinate and participate in training exercises with-
in the region to strengthen response to and recovery 
from emergencies.
 • Work to educate the public on disaster preparedness, 
recovery, and resiliency. 
 • Continue participation in the Local Emergency Man-
agement Commission for the region.
 • Employ and update the Woodbury County Joint Emer-

Goals
gency Operations Basic Plan as required by Iowa State 
Code 29c.
 • Ensure adequate funding to maintain a high level of 
emergency operations within the County.

Continue supporting the Siouxland District 
Health Department in their mission to lead a “col-
laborative effort to build a healthier community 
through improved access to health services, ed-
ucation and disease prevention.”

 • Continue Woodbury County Emergency Management 
and Emergency Services Departments’ partnership 
and participation in the Service Area 3 Healthcare co-
alition. 
 • Support the implementation of the Siouxland District 
Health Department’s Community Health Improve-
ment Plan for the Siouxland Community developed 
from the three-year Community Health Needs Assess-
ment for the Siouxland Community.
 • Coordinate with and support the Siouxland Commu-
nity Health Department in responses to public health 
emergencies. 

Support the recovery and resiliency of industries, 
businesses, and homes in the event of a natural 
or public health disaster. 

 • Ensure reliable internet and telecommunications ser-
vices to keep physical and home-based businesses’ 
web operations in place in natural or public health di-
saster situations.
 • Prioritize funding any economic relief programs put 
in place after disaster situations for entities with the 
highest need.
 • Promote available local, state, and federal resources for 
economic recovery from disasters.
 • Allow for flexibility in ordinances to encourage the con-
tinuity of business operations which may be disrupt-
ed due to public health directives during public health 
emergencies.

Ensure residents’ access to safe, healthy, and 
efficient homes that are prepared to withstand 
increasingly frequent severe and unpredictable 
weather.

 • Promote the use of healthy and safe building materi-
als, high indoor air quality, and environments free of 
pests, radon, mold, and other health hazards.
 • Encourage energy- and water- efficiency in home ret-
rofit projects and new construction and the use of on-
site renewable energy systems.
 • Provide information about how to protect homes from 
flooding in preparation for increasingly frequent heavy 
rain events.

Image source: kscj.com

78



79



80



81



82


	1) 5-22-23_ZC_Agenda
	2) ZC Minutes 04-24-2023
	3) Homestead_1867_Addition_Second_Filing_Minor_Subdivsion_Report
	4) SOLAR_Stakeholder_Review_Proposal
	5) CUP_884702100002_Borrow_Pit_JB_Holland
	6) WIFI_LLC_CUP_Report
	7) Agenda packet materials
	8) ZC_ROP_Effective_2-8-22



